HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 10, 2010
1:38 p. m

1: 38: 28 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 1:38 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Allan Austerman
Representative M ke Doogan

Representative Anna Faircl ough
Representative Les Gara

Representative M ke Kelly

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

James Arnstrong, Staff, Co-Chair Stoltze; Karen Rehfeld,
Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget, Ofice of the
Governor; Eric Swanson, Director, Division of Adm nistrative
Services, Department of Administration; Jo Ellen Hanrahan,
Division Director, Departnment of Commerce & Economc
Devel opnent; Ana Kim Director, Admnistrative Services,
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent; Kristin Ryan,
Director, Division of Environnental Health, Departnent of

Envi r onnment al Conservati on; Tom Lawson, Di rector,
Adm ni strative Services, Departnment of Fish and Gane; Alison
El gee, Assistant Conm ssi oner, Fi nance and Managenent

Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services; Jennifer
Klein, Facilities Manager, Departnent of Health & Social
Services; Guy Bell, Assistant Comm ssioner and Director,
Di vision of Admi nistrative Services, Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnment; Leta Sinons, Director, Division of
Support Services, Departnment of Natural Resources; Mchelle
Ri zk, Budget Director, University of Al aska Fairbanks

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

James King, Director of Parks and Recreation

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



SUMVARY
HB 326 SUPPLEMENTAL/ CAPI TAL/ OTHER APPROPRI ATl ONS

HB 326 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 325 APPROP: DEFERRED MAI NTENANCE/ REPLACEMENT

HB 325 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

O fice of Managenent and Budget Overviews:
OQperating Appropriations
Capi tal and Deferred M ntenance Appropriations

1: 38:42 PM

#hb326
#hb225
HOUSE BI LL 326

"An Act making supplenental appropriations, capital
appropriations, and other appropriations; anending
appropri ations; repeal i ng appropri ations; maki ng
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

HOUSE BI LL 325

"An Act making capital appropriations for deferred

mai nt enance  proj ects, equi pnent repl acenent, and
energency repairs; and providing for an effective
date."

OFFI CE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET OVERVI EW5

1: 39: 25 PM

JAMES ARMSTRONG, STAFF, CO-CHAIR STOLTZE, pointed to a
prepared handout that Ilists side by side the Deferred
Mai nt enance Capital Requests and the Regular Supplenental
Capital Request (copy on file). He indicated that the
handout would nake it easier to see the requests as each
departnment presents their requests. He pointed out the
backup in the binder and noted that Section 3 is the Capital
Budgets for the Regul ar Suppl enment al and on the
spreadsheets, starting on Page 11, Section 57. He added t hat
the last section in the binder is the Deferred Muintenance
Requests (FY10, HB 225 & HB 226 Covernor's Supplenental &
Def erred Mai ntenance Budgets, Book 1, copy on file).

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, appreciated dealing with both bills

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



today. She remarked that the deferred maintenance bill is a
straight forward bill wth the governor proposing $100
mllion to allocate across all departnments listed on a 2-
page spreadsheet. She explained that the agencies wll
explain where they are listed on the spreadsheet and
describe their projects then take questions from the
conmittee.

M. Arnstrong stated that the bold Ilistings on the
spreadsheet are the Appropriations and |isted below are the
Al | ocation Requests.

1:43: 38 PM AT EASE

1:47: 03 PM RECONVENED

M. Arnstrong clarified that the last Section in the binder
is deferred mai ntenance where nost of the day woul d probably
be spent. He noted that in Section 3 there are four other
requests fromthree different agencies.

ERI C SWANSON, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, ADM NI STRATI VE stated a request on Line 2 of
t he Spreadsheet w th $4, 250,000 for deferred naintenance of
facilities in the public building fund. These facilities are
managed by the Departnent of Admi nistration and are projects
that can be noved on quickly to address certain deferred
mai nt enance needs. He added that all the facilities are in
Juneau.

Representative Austerman asked if all the buildings in
Juneau were governnent buildings. M. Swanson responded t hat
was correct.

1: 49: 38 PM

Representative Gara asked how the working docunment prepared
by Representative Stoltze's office showing two deferred
mai nt enance requests related to the spreadsheet wth
mul tiple requests. M. Swanson replied that the two requests
correspond to the lines in the bill. The longer lists are
the detailed list of the facilities in need. M. Rehfeld
explained there are two projects for the Departnent of
Adm nistration in the bill that are broken down into
Facilities Deferred Mintenance and the Tel ecomrunication
System def erred nai nt enance.

Representative Austerman noted that on Page 5 of the
deferred mai ntenance section there is a listing of nineteen
projects in Juneau.

M. Swanson reported that the request for the $4,250,000 is

for 7 projects recently identified. Representative Austernman
noted they do not match up with his information. Ms. Rehfeld

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



explained that M. Swanson was referring to specific itens
for the first allocation of noney. M. Swanson noted that
page 5 is the correct part of the original package request
subm tt ed.

Representative Austerman asked if the conmttee had the nost
updated list. Ms. Rehfeld noted that the comrttee does not
have the list being used by sone departnents. She explained
that M. Swanson was reading from a newer |ist identifying
the higher priority projects. She indicated that OvB woul d
be providing the newer I|ist.

1: 55: 03 PM

Ms. Rehfeld apol ogized to the commttee. She expl ained that
today's goal was listen to each agency's deferred
mai nt enance needs so that these higher priority projects
could be conpleted in the first year

1: 55: 51 PM

Representative Fairclough thought it would be difficult to
see if the commttee agrees with the prioritized listing
wi thout the information in front of them

Ms. Rehfel d suggested going through a few agencies to see if
the information neets the needs of the conmittee. She
bel i eved nost woul d be straight forward requests.

M. Swanson continued to his second request of $3 mllion
for deferred maintenance on the state of Al aska
tel ecommuni cation system He stated that conmmunication
towers |ocated throughout the state have parts in need of
repair or replacenent.

Representative Gara referred to the prior funding history of
$1.5 and $2.7 mllion and wondered why request is so mnuch
| ar ger (page 6).

M. Swanson answered that there are many deferred
mai nt enance projects on the list for SATS facilities in need
of serious repair and the departnment was taking the
opportunity to catch-up

Co-Chair Stoltze expressed his irritation in not having all
the information available for the commttee. He wondered how
many ot her agenci es have projects where the information has
not been provided to the conmttee.

Ms. Rehfeld responded that the information wll vary between
departnments. Sonme departnents will be able to give a direct
list and others wll need to refer to a second list that is
not presently avail abl e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze instructed Ms. Rehfeld to present only
those departnents where all the information was avail able
for the commttee.

2: 00: 53 PM AT EASE

2:08:27 PM RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stoltze nentioned the departnments that would be
heard during the neeting.

Ms. Rehfeld explained that she wanted to bring the list of
projects with the list of priorities. She indicated that
sonme agenci es have done better job with backup material than
ot hers.

2: 09: 53 PM

M. Arnmstrong interjected that the commttee should refer to
Section 3 in the binder for the Departnment of Commerce &
Econom c Devel opnent .

JO ELLEN HANRAHAN, DI VI SI ON DI RECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF COVMERCE
& ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, noted that the supplenental request
of $2.1 mllion would conplete the City of Kodiak Conmunity
Jail Facility. The facility has space for all of Kodiak's
| aw enforcenent pr ogr ams, ani mal control, conmuni ty
services, area regional dispatch, and regional energency
operations. The city is experiencing a shortage of funds to
conplete the project of the community jail (Section 3, page
1). She elaborated that if the facility is not conpleted

then the community wll be operating out of two different
facilities with the police station in one building and the
community jail in another. This wll increase the annual

operating costs by $1.3 million a year.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if this is one of the SB 65 projects.
Ms. Rehfeld responded that was correct.

Representative Gara needed to know where this information
was | ocated. M. Arnstrong reiterated that it was |ocated in
Section 3 of the binder. He explained that sone agencies
have requests contained within the regular supplenental and
t he deferred mai nt enance suppl enent al

2:13: 28 PM

Representative Austernman asked why the Departnent of
Commerce is carrying these funds through. M. Hanrahan
explained that the Departnment of Commerce is the naned
agency because the grants to municipalities go through this
departnment. The request originated from the Departnent of
Corrections.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



2:14:45 PM

ANA KIM DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT requested $1.7 nmillion for
M. Edgecunbe Hi gh School deferred nmaintenance. She

indicated that this will conplete the remaining maintenance
on the boys and girls dorns and drainage inprovenent at
Heritage Hall. She noted it should also cover asbestos

removal from the storage warehouse and denolition of an oil
pai nt shop buil di ng.

Representati ve Doogan asked if there will be an actual 1|ist
fromthe Admnistration for all the projects under the $100
mllion request. Co-Chair Stoltze answered it wll be

com ng. Representative Doogan asked when the committee wll
receive this list. Ms. Rehfeld responded that the hope was
to have it already, but it wll be sent to the commttee
menbers as qui ckly as possible. Representative Doogan wanted
to make sure detailed information was forthcomng in order
t o make deci si ons.

2:18: 02 PM

M. Arnstrong remarked that a spreadsheet arrived late the
previ ous evening, but corrections needed to be made by the
Adm ni stration before it could be handed out. He indicated
his intention to personally deliver the spreadsheet with an
explanation as soon as it is available. Representative
Doogan reiterated that it was needed.

2:19: 23 PM

Ms. Rehfeld noted that the backup in the binder does
represent a significant anmount of information. The new
spreadsheet w Il supplenent this information wth nore
clarity.

Representative Gara elaborated that it was unrealistic for
the commttee to know if the anmount of noney requested is
the right price for the project. He assuned that soneone in
the departnent determ nes the anobunt is the nost efficient
manner to get the project conpleted, but noted that the
commttee nust take this information on face val ue. He asked
who nakes these deci sions.

Ms. Rehfeld shared that state agencies have facilities plans
and managers who work on 6 year plan projects. Part of The
challenge is the funding for projects on an ongoing basis.
Wen a 6 year plan is nade, there are professional estinmates
made to determ ne costs. Wien the projects go out to bid

t hese nunbers m ght change. If the estimate cones in higher
t han budgeted then the agency will do what they can with the
allotted noney. She reiterated that the agencies bring forth

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



the best possible estimates for any project. Representative
Gara wanted to know how these projects were deci ded on.

Ms. Rehfeld declared that originally a large list of
projects from all the state's agencies with a $1.9 billion
backlog was given to the admnistration. The governor
proposed a $100 mllion a year five-year plan with the
intention of going as far down the list as possible. She
noted that the agencies were asked to list their highest
priorities.

2:24: 24 PM

KRI STIN RYAN, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF ENVI RONMENTAL HEALTH,
DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONVENTAL CONSERVATI ON, requested $200, 000
for the Environnmental Health Lab deferred nai ntenance. She
expl ai ned that this would correct the deficiencies
identified during a federal inspection to seal the roomthat
handl es contagi ous toxins. She noted that the Departnent of
Transportation provided the estimates.

TOM LAWSON, DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF
FI SH AND GAME, referred to three projects listed on lines 8

9, and 10 of the deferred maintenance spreadsheet. The first
project for $850,000 was for infrastructure needs and
upgrades in statew de enpl oyee housing. He explained that in
areas where there are no housing opportunities for transient
and seasonal staff, the departnent provides the housing. He
poi nted out the nobst serious needs were in Dutch Harbor and
Yakatat. The plan for Dutch Harbor would be to contract for
a nodular to be shipped to the Ilocation. M. Lawson
continued that the Yakatat cabin does not have running water
so the plan would be to purchase a single famly dwelling or
contract for a nodular. He added that this nethod has been
used before and is very efficient.

Representative Fairclough asked why this is |isted under
deferred mai ntenance and not listed in the capital budget.
M. Lawson responded that in a situation where there is
exi sting housing that is sub-standard the choice is for it
to be repaired, replaced or built. Representative Fairclough
believed this was capital not deferred mai ntenance project.

2: 30: 38 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze agreed that both sounded I|ike capital
proj ect s.

Representative Gara inquired that since these areas had few
enpl oyees was the departnment asking for single famly units.
M. Larson agreed. Representative Gara noted that the cost
of the units could range from $300,000 to $600,000. He
guestioned if that was the appropriate amount of noney in
those areas. M. Lawson responded that he did not know. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



agreed that the figure could be high, but the departnent has
needs that exceed the noney that is being requested. The
estimates are only ranges. Co-Chair Stoltze agreed that
seens high for a single famly hone, especially with no
| and.

Representative Austerman agreed that the requested $850, 000
seens vague. He believed the figures needed to be broken
down further.

M. Lawson continued that the second request for $700, 000
was for upgrades to statew de storage and shop facilities.
He referred to a nunber of canps and offices throughout the
state where field equipnent and fuel need to be stored. He
noted that these facilities wll need to be upgraded or
repl aced. He remarked that the departnment would start in the
communities of King Sal non, Yakatat, MG ath, and Hai nes.

Representati ve Austerman responded that the replacenent that
is a capital, not a deferred nai ntenance issue.

2: 35: 08 PM

Ms. Rehfeld comented that the enphasis is on deferred
mai nt enance, but if an estimate to perform the upgrade or
renovation is too high, then the recommendation m ght be
made that it is cheaper to just replace the structure.
Representative Austerman agreed that it mght be a better
idea to replace the structure, but enphasized that if that
is the decision then the departnment needs to return with a
different project list. Ms. Rehfeld responded that if there
is mpjor renovation then it is in major maintenance, but
adding facility space falls under the construction | abel.

M. Lawson continued with the third project for $450, 000 for
upgrades to the Kodi ak Warehouse conpound. This warehouse
needs a roof replacenent and siding. This is a nmajor
conmpound for in Kodiak.

Representati ve Doogan asked what is kept in the warehouse.
M. Lawson responded that the warehouse stores smaller
vessel s, outboard notors, trucks, and mai ntenance equi prment.

2:37:44 PM

ALl SON ELGEE, ASSI STANT COWMM SSI ONER, FI NANCE AND MANAGEMENT
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, |isted
two requests that fall into the Pioneer Honme program
t hroughout the state and non-Pioneer hone facilities.
I ncluded in the non-pioneer hones are the juvenile justice
facility, Alaska Psychiatric Institute, public health
nursing facilities, and other buildings throughout the
state. The projects listed extend beyond the appropriation
requested, but the projects are listed in priority order

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



The noney provided by the committee will be used in order
down the list until the noney runs out.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if they would be going through
projects fromtop to bottomon the list. M. Elgee indicated
that the lists are reviewed and reprioritized annually and
sonetime the priorities can change. She noted the |ist
before the commttee today is best information of the top
priorities.

Representative Austerman asked if the $4 nmillion will only
t ake the departnent through the first four projects.

JENNI FER KLEI'N, FACI LI TIES MANAGER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &
SOCI AL SERVICES, replied that the $4 mllion should take
themto nunber eleven on the list (Section 3, page 19).

2:42: 48 PM

Ms. Elgee noved to the spreadsheet for HB 326 suppl enenta

requests (Page 12, line 60). This request will conplete the
Medi caid Managenent Information System project. It was
identified last year in developing the budget for the
managenent information system There is a process where an
approved planning docunent is reviewed and approved by the
f eder al gover nment . The project receives 90 percent
participation on the part of the federal governnent,

therefore the funding reviewed for this project is a 90/10
split. Unfortunately an error was made failing to identify
that when the federal governnent approved that planning
docunent they indicated that there had been a previous
effort to develop an MM S systemthat the federal governnent
already paid for once and stated they would not pay again.

The federal governnent subtracted $4.5 nmillion from their
participation in the particular developnent effort. This
left the project with a $4 mllion general fund hole. A
second issue arose with the coding of the MMS environnent.

This systemis al so under devel opnent in one of the Dakotas
where they are slightly ahead. They discovered in their
development a significant coding error that required
remediation. This has set the project back one year;

therefore the increased costs are for this extension.

2:45: 50 PM

Representati ve Doogan noted that page 12 |lists the request
for $6.2 nmillion in general funds and $8.7 nillion in
federal funds for a total of $14,990,000. He asked if that
was correct. M. Elgee replied that is the amount of
suppl emental funds being requested. Representative Doogan
asked if the additional fund requests and the | esser federal
funds are accounted for in these requests. Ms. Elgee replied
yes. Representative Doogan asked if these funds will finish

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



the project. Ms. Elgee replied yes, according to the best
i nformati on avail abl e t oday.

2:47: 29 PM

GUY BELL, ASSI STANT COWM SSI ONER AND DI RECTOR, DI VI SI ON OF
ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT, reported one item for $1 million in deferred
mai nt enance for the Alaska Vocational Technical Center
(AVTEC). The vocational center operates 16 state owned
buil dings, 11 of which are over 25 years old. The nopney
request is for maintenance staff and associ ated supplies for
mai nt enance of the facilities. Three nmaintenance staff from
capital inprovenment project receipts performthe day to day
wor k. The remai nder of the funding is allocated to priority
projects including |ightening, security and drainage
i nprovenents to parking lots and facilities, hazardous
mat erial abatenent, residential and cafeteria facilities
equi pnent and i nprovenents. Conmi ssioner Bell noted for the
record that priorities change as things break down which
cannot al ways be anti ci pat ed.

Representative Austerman remarked that $310,900 of the
request for deferred maintenance was paying salaries for
sonme mai ntenance personnel. Conm ssioner Bell answered that
some of the maintenance staff are funded through the
operating appropriations and the remaining three are through
the capital budget. Representative Austerman asked if the
three on staff currently are paid every year through capital
funds. Conmmi ssioner Bell answered yes.

Co-Chair Stoltze agreed that was strange for enpl oyees to be
in the capital budget.

Conmi ssioner Bell noted that this information is disclosed
in the operating budget request. In the past there has been
di scussion for requesting general funds for these staff so
t hey becone part of the base, but a decision has been nmade
to fund a conponent of the staff for review each year in the
deferred mai ntenance part of the capital budget.

2:52: 13 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze maintained that historically even short
term enpl oyees are in the capital budget.

Representative Fairclough asked if the three enployees
receive retirenent. M. Bell answered yes as they are
per mmnent enpl oyees. Representative Fairclough asked if the
deferred nmmi ntenance was comng out of the general fund

Comm ssion Bell responded yes. Representative Fairclough
deferred to the co-chair to see if these positions need to
be renoved from the budget. She asked how |ong they have
been funded. Conmm ssioner Bell responded that he has been

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



with the departnent since 2003 and the positions have been
funded in this manner the entire tine.

2:53: 53 PM

Representative Gara referred to the HB 325 spreadsheets,
page 31, on the AVTEC request and noted that for FY2010 the
request is for $1 mllion but in FY2010 the requests junps
to $45 nillion. He asked what the anmount was for
Comm ssioner Bell remarked that there are a nunber of ol der
bui |l di ngs that need to be replaced or repaired. He nentioned
a 135 student dormtory that has reached the end of its
useful |ife. Wen this happens the question is if the
buil ding should be renovated or replaced, and in this
situation the decision is to replace it. This has been
identified as a deferred nmintenance project, not capital
but he does realize the conmttee probably |ooks at this
issue as nore of a capital project. He added that it would
be nore expensive to renovate then repl ace.

Representative Gara asked that it seens |like a | ot of noney
for maintenance for a building that will soon be renovated
or replaced. Conm ssioner Bell agreed that is an issue. He
argued that the facilities need to be maintained until they
are replaced. Representative Gara wondered how nuch of the
$560, 000 goes for an interim patch for the residence and
cafeteria. Conm ssioner Bell deferred to Fred Esposito,
Director, AVIEC. Co-Chair Stoltze asked if M. Esposito was
on line, not hearing a response he noved on to the next
guesti on.

Representative Austerman requested nore information on the
actual use of the requested funds before any decisions could
be made.

2:57:57 PM

M. Arnmstrong remarked the in the Departnent of Labor's
short form there are FY2009 Actuals of $867,000 of CP
recei pts and AVTEC expended $168, 700.

2:58: 28 PM

LETA SI MONS, DI RECTOR, DVISION OF SUPPORT SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, nentioned three requests on
the deferred maintenance |ist. She naned the state parks
deferred nmaintenance, energency repairs, and equipnent
repl acement at $3,480,000. She listed the state park areas
t hat woul d receive the funds.

Representative Fairclough asked if the Departnent of
Transportation gave these estimates. M. Sinons responded
that the departnment has their own engineers who provide the
estimates. Representative Fairclough questioned at what

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



| evel of design detail the projects were estimted. M.
Sinons deferred to James King for the answer.

JAMVES KI NG DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION (via
tel econference), responded that there has been a |ong
process evaluating and determning deferred nmaintenance
needs and their engineers have | ooked at these projects to
verify they are deferred mai ntenance and have provided costs
estimates. He added that about 40 percent to 50 percent are
desi gn. M . King explained that the departnent IS
confortable with the nunbers, but the actual bid nunbers
m ght conme in nore or |ess.

Representative Fairclough asked the adm nistrative overhead
costs on these projects. M. King responded that it 1is
vari abl e depending on the project. There may be a greater
process for sone projects that would result in a 25 percent
or higher adm nistrative costs.

Co-Chair Stoltze questioned if there was a percent range.
M. King stated that the high would be 25 percent and the
| ow woul d be zero.

3:06: 50 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas wondered what the inprovenents were for
the Chilkat State Park in Haines. M. King reported that the
road is no longer gradable because the top material has
eroded and nmany canpsites have becone unusable and need
I nprovenents.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas wel coned the road inprovenents and voiced
his concern that the Departnent of Transportation does not
mai ntai n the road.

3:09: 38 PM

Representati ve Doogan noticed that approximately one third
of the noney is unallocated spending and wondered if the
noney would be given to the agency with just the hope they
do the right thing without having nore precise information.
Ms. Sinons responded that health and sanitation projects are
evaluated in the spring to see what mght need to be dealt
with after the winter. Representative Doogan stated that
this was a new category of deferred maintenance where
projects are to be naned later. M. Sinons responded that
the projects are not listed because the priority wll be
accessed year to year.

Ms. Sinons continued that another request of $330,000 was
for the Division of Agriculture Plant Material Center for
$330,000. This is a production farm feed |aboratory and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



research facility that support the agriculture industry in
Al aska. This request wll help elimnate the flooding near
the main buildings and greenhouses, replace outdated
equi pnent, provide paving and drai nage, upgrade a spray rig
and purchase a nmedi um si ze tractor

3:14: 02 PM

Representative Austerman remarked that sone requests, like
the new tractor, |look Iike capital projects. M. Sinon noted
there is a question of what is deferred nmaintenance. The
depart nment defines deferred nmaintenance as sonething
currently being used and necessary for operations that now
needs to be replaced or upgraded.

Representative Austerman observed there are outdated and
rusting machinery in rural areas that cannot get funded or
repl aced because it does not nmake it into the capital list.
He did not consider the replacenent of a tractor as deferred
mai nt enance. Representative Doogan asked if there is a
functioning definition of deferred nmaintenance.

Ms. Rehfeld declared there are several definitions of ngjor
mai nt enance. She asserted that the governor was clear in his
budget regarding the necessity to protect current state
assets. The lists presented by the agencies will be refined
over the 5 year program She reiterated that part of the
issue is if replacenent is a better value than renovation.

Represent ati ve Doogan appreciated that refined information
will be forthcom ng, but added that $100 million in requests
are in front of commttee now and nore information i s needed
when it comes to appropriating this noney.

3:19: 25 PM

Ms. Rehfeld agreed but suggested that when |ooking across
the departnents at the variety of projects from buil dings,
roads, facilities, vessels, and airports there wll be
different definitions that need to be | ooked at.

Representative Gara recalled that the admnistration's
position was that deferred maintenance should be funded
qui ckly so that the imrediate projects could be started as
rapidly as possible with the rest being done later. He
enphasi zed that this budget was filled with projects that do
not need to be acconplished before the rest of the budget is
conpleted. He referred to the DNR request for $190,000 for
the M. MKinley Meat Plant. He failed to understand why the
project requests needed to be done before other capital
projects. Ms. Rehfeld stressed that the governor's interest

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



is to get the deferred mai ntenance on the table to hel p put
Al askans to worKk.

Co-Chair Stoltze agreed nore scrutiny mght be necessary
when exam ni ng t he deferred mai nt enance budget .
Representative Austerman maintained the need for clarity on
t he process.

3:25: 07 PM

Representative Gara asked if the governor's intention was to
get projects running a nonth earlier than other projects
maybe it would be useful to have the adm nistration present
a list of the actual projects that need to be out on the
street a nonth early.

Ms. Sinmons continued with the last line itemof $190, 000 for
the M. MKinley neat plant nachinery and efficiency
upgr ades.

3:28:19 PM

M CHELLE RI ZK, BUDGET DI RECTOR, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA
FAI RBANKS, stated that the University of Al aska maintains
400 buil dings, with an average age of 31 years, and with 6.7

mllion square feet. The deferred maintenance bill includes
$37.5 mllion for the annual requirement to maintain
existing facilities and reduce  additional deferred
mai nt enance needs. The noney would be spread anobng the
state's canpuses and a list has been submtted to the
conmi ttee.

3:31:11 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered how many buildings were at each
canpus.

Ms. Rizk replied that the University of Al aska Fairbanks has
242 of the 399 buildings. The blue book list details how
funds would be distributed. She continued that the
University of Al aska Anchorage has 53 buildings and the
Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast has 34 facilities.

3:32:37 PM

Representati ve Doogan requested from Ms. Rizk a list of
priorities for clarification. He asked if the first $37.5
mllion in projects would be conpleted first. M. R zk
clarified that the nost critical parts of each project would
be handl ed first.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



Represent ati ve Doogan asked how the $37.5 million is divided
up anong the canmpuses. Ms. Rizk responded that she has not
told the commttee that information, but it is listed on the
sheet that the conmttee will receive.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas questioned the capital budget with $25
mllion listed for schools which is for deferred mai nt enance
and wondered why it was not listed with the $100 nmllion
deferred nmi ntenance |i st.

Ms. Rehfeld replied that the legislature will nake deci sions
about what should be included in this package. She recapped
that the governor's intention was to focus on state and
university facilities with $100 million a year for the next
five years. Schools would not necessarily be part of that 5-
year plan, but were traditionally addressed through the
capital budget process. She agreed that the problem nmay be
in defining deferred nai ntenance projects.

Vice-Chair Thonmas argued that every time schools cone
| ooki ng for major maintenance noney it is to the legislature
and he felt the $25 million for the schools should be added
t he governor's $100 million deferred mai ntenance budget as a
hi gher priority.

3:38: 00 PM

Representative Gara wanted to nmake sure the $37.5 nillion
request for the next five years was the wuniversity's
priority. He noted that dormtory space at the university is
a problemthat should be addressed. He asked if the list for
the $37.5 million ranks ahead of some new construction
projects. M. R zk responded that the Board of Regents
overal | nunber one priority is maintaining existing
facilities and deferred nai ntenance. The board has only one
new construction priority, the Life Sciences Buil ding.

Representative Gara questioned if the science building being
funded was for the Anchorage building, not the one being
replaced in Fairbanks. M. R zk agreed it was for the
Sci ence Building in Anchorage.

Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated the dilemma of building new
facilities, but the reality is that repairs mght be needed
on the existing facility.

Representati ve Fai r cl ough asked how  nuch deferred
mai nt enance noney was provided to the university. M. R zk
responded that $3.2 mllion was allocated even though the
Board of Regents requested $50 mllion. Representative
Faircl ough questioned if inside the wuniversity's budget

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



there is a fund that holds deferred maintenance noney. M.
Rizk replied that the capital funds are separate.

Representative Fairclough inquired if any noney was |eft
from last year's allocated funds after conpleting projects
and, if so, how much. She added that the university was
asking for $37.5 nmillion, but she had been told in previous
years that $50 mllion would never neet the needs of
def erred mai nt enance projects.

Ms. Rizk responded that the Board of Regents distributes the
funds to specific projects. There is a fund established for
each specific project and five years to spend the noney.
There are tinmes were there may be a balance in that fund

Representative Fairclough asked if the balance transfers to
a new project or is there a larger account for funds
avai l able to be used for projects by the university.

Ms. Rizk maintained that the funds were allocated to a
specific project. Representative Fairclough wondered if the
project runs under and funds are remmining, would the noney
sweep back to the general fund or is it reallocated to
another project. Ms. Rizk declared that the Board of Regents
approves projects, but if a balance is left, then the
university woul d | ook at other deferred nmaintenance projects
t hat had not been funded and would bring this information to
the board and ask to use the remaining funds for the next
need on the list.

3:44: 21 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan questioned if he was correct that the
anount each agency received was related to the square
footage of its facilities. Ms. Rehfeld agreed that it was
al l ocated by the square footage.

Representati ve Doogan argued that the expenditures are not
for square footage in many places since the requests were
not always for a building or facility.

M. Arnstrong stated he would get the spreadsheets in the
bl ue book referenced by Ms. Rizk to the conmttee.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:46 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/10/10 1:38 P. M



